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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  Let’s go ahead and get started.  I know members will probably come in sometime during the afternoon, but I want to bring the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley to order.


As many of you are aware, this committee was created by Senator Burton and the Rules Committee in January to collect information and make recommendations to address critical air pollution problems in the Central Valley.  Today marks the tenth hearing of this committee, and it’s perhaps the most important.


As you probably know, a critical piece of legislation aimed at improving the Valley’s dirty air is in jeopardy in the Assembly Appropriations Committee; that being SB 700.  


Before I address that specific issue, I’d like to again, for many of you in the audience who have been with us through the many hearings, lay out the problem.  Three of the four dirtiest cities in the entire country in terms of air pollution are located in the Central Valley.  Following Los Angeles are the cities of Fresno, Bakersfield, and Visalia.  The fifth is _________, who are sandwiched, if you will, between Los Angeles and Houston.  As you know, the Central Valley now has 10 percent more ozone exceedence days than the Los Angeles Basin, according to the federal eight-hour standard, and asthma rates are three times the national average.  Fresno County has the highest asthma rate.  In fact, it is almost an epidemic—in terms of 16.4 percent—where, in schools, one out of every six kids carry an inhaler to class today.


The reason—you know—that SB 700 came about is that the federal EPA ruled that it would impose sanctions on California if the state did not end the exemption for agriculture from the federal Clean Air Act.  These sanctions, to be very clear, would include a loss of over $2 billion in funding for road and highway construction for the entire state.


The fact of the matter is, air pollution is severely affecting our children, the health and our economies in the Central Valley, and it’s clear to us, after the many hearings that we’ve had thus to date, that doing the minimum is simply not good enough.


This committee, as you probably know, has left no stone unturned.  We have had hearings on federal compliance deadlines for air quality, the role of agriculture, how dairies affect pollution, specific air effects such as asthma and respiratory illnesses, as well as truck and vehicle emissions.  As you might have seen, we had a hearing just recently here in the Capitol on railroad emissions, where Senator Boxer and I are doing our best to get an MOU for the Central Valley, to try to cut down on those emissions as well.


Today, I’d like to spend a little time, if possible, on SB 700.  Both publicly and privately, individual members in the Assembly have expressed concerns with the bill as it currently stands.  As you probably know, for either political reasons or others, these objections have stalled the bill somewhat in the committee.  We will be having another hearing on that bill for vote only on Thursday, and as you probably know, SB 700 was introduced in February.  We’ve amended the bill seven times.  Despite hours of negotiations on the bill and policy hearings by both the Senate and the Assembly, certain members of the Assembly have continued to raise disagreements with this bill—and particularly troublesome to me at the eleventh hour.


So, this afternoon—and I want to stress in public—we will ask the various parties in this debate to present their case.  It’s my hope to answer the following questions in today’s hearing:

1. What specific policy objections do members of the Assembly Appropriations Committee have to the current version of SB 700?  And what, if any, are their counterproposals?

2. How does SB 700 go beyond the EPA minimum requirement to close agricultural exemption?

3. What would the agricultural community like to see differently in this bill?

4. And finally, to hear the case of why we must go beyond the legal requirement to clean the air.


Invited to testify to this committee today was Assemblyman Leland Yee and Assemblywoman Nicole Parra, who have both publicly expressed their opposition to this current version of the bill, the agencies responsible for air quality in California, the Air Resources Board, and our regional air districts, as well as representatives from the agricultural interests and, of course, the environmental community.  Everyone knew.  And this hearing was put in the file for a reason:  This is an official hearing of the Senate Select Committee.  


It’s important to note that the amendments that were offered the last eleventh hour, if you will, on Wednesday should be vetted in public.  That’s very important that we hear the reasons for opposition and that the environmental community and others have an opportunity to respond to those amendments.  I think that’s extremely important that we work this bill out as much as we have over the last seven amendments during this process.


There will be time for public comment.  We do have an agenda, and so, we’ll begin and we’ll go through the agenda.  Then we will ask those who are present to speak; and, of course, those who aren’t, I guess that will probably speak for itself.


So, let’s go ahead and start.  I do know we’ll be joined by members very soon.  I do know that some members who are very interested in this topic will join us who may not sit on the committee but, I think, have concerns on this issue as well.


So, let’s go to Item II of the agenda:  Proposed Amendments to SB 700.  Mr. Yee—or a representative here from the Assemblyman’s office?  Any representatives from Assemblywoman Nicole Parra’s office in terms of the amendments?


Okay.


Let’s go on to the third section:  Air Quality Agencies:  Rob Oglesby, California Air Resources Board. 


Thanks, Rob, for joining us.


I actually have questions.  If I could proceed through those and then we can maybe have some comments after.  But if you’d like to open with an opening, that’s just as well for us.


MR. ROB OGLESBY:  Thank you, Senator.  Rob Oglesby representing the Air Resources Board.  


I don’t have an opening statement, but I’m happy to respond to the questions you have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


Let’s start first by asking the state of air quality in the Central Valley—your perspective.  And in terms of the role that agriculture plays in that, maybe you can give us just a broad overview.


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, you’ve provided a very good context about the nature of air quality and the health effects in the San Joaquin Valley.  In point of fact, the San Joaquin Valley is close to joining Southern California as the nation’s only extreme air quality nonattainment areas in federal designation.


Agriculture represents about 26 percent of the inventory for ozone precursors in the Valley, and in the wintertime. . . . or in the fall it can be up to about half of the directly emitted particulate.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have any thought in terms of why SB 700 might be needed in terms of what you see in the bill thus far?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, I guess my reaction to SB 700 would be that, clearly, it’s a bill that has two objectives.  One is to satisfy the requirements that are brought about by the looming federal sanctions for Title 5 purposes.  The second is to clearly go beyond the minimum that’s required for the sanction and then put in place a framework to get emission reductions for ozone and particulate in large agricultural operations in the San Joaquin Valley. . . . in the Central Valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And under current law, can the Air Board advise and assist in the permitting of agricultural sources of pollution?  Under current law.


MR. OGLESBY:  Under current law, there is an exemption that really precludes us from getting involved in agricultural sources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I guess the follow-up is, then, do you believe the ability to permit agricultural sources with rules and regulations might improve the air, given that exemption?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, the short answer is:  yes.  I mean, we have a category of emission sources that are exempt from regulation.


To qualify the first answer I gave you, the role that we have with agriculture, emissions is related to data and inventory, but a permit system or other rules or regulations that would reduce emissions from those sources obviously would have an air quality impact that would be positive.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Currently, SB 700 is written. . . . it closes the exemption, from your perspective, in terms of the federal Clean Air Act?


MR. OGLESBY:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, it does.  Okay.  So, this would probably allow us to avoid the $2 billion . . .


MR. OGLESBY:  Two point four billion.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that a real threat, or is that some sort of perceived threat that may or may not happen?


MR. OGLESBY:  It’s a nondiscretionary sanction that’s triggered by legal action.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And have there been other sanctions the EPA has put on various others in the nation when we’ve not met a certain threshold?


MR. OGLESBY:  It’s happened before, elsewhere in the nation and in this state.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you describe for us and to the public in terms of what is referred to in this debate as the “Poochigian letter”?  What was the impetus for the EPA’s response back to California in terms of what we might do or what we should do in order to avoid those sanctions?


MR. OGLESBY:  It’s referred to as the “Poochigian letter,” but I believe you’re referring to the letter that’s from the USEPA in response to some language that was offered by Senator Poochigian, which I have in front of me.  What I’m referring to, for the record, is the February 20th, 2003, response.  It was a critique of the language that was offered up at that time, essentially saying. . . . and offering some suggestions on how to make the language more clear.  To sum it up in a phrase, that language lacked some clarity that was presented.  The “Poochigian letter,” in about a page, indicates some clarity that should be provided to clarify the language.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, the Poochigian language from the EPA seems to be—and I know the Farm Bureau and others will probably come argue their case here somewhat aggressively, hopefully, because that’s the way it’s been thus far in terms of Appropriations Committee, in terms of what they would like to see—but the Poochigian language is a minimum requirement to meet the lawsuit.  Or do you see it as going further, such as SB 700?  Which is going further in terms of—from your perspective—cleaning the air?  Because I think ultimately that’s what we’re talking about.


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, let’s set this actual February 20th response and just talk to the sense of it.  And the sense of it is, in a couple of letters that have gone back and forth, the question was to USEPA:  What’s required?  What do we need to do to satisfy the Title 5 requirements?  And the response essentially has been back, in this letter and others, in testimony in front of your committee in Fresno, that a rather narrowly cast definition would satisfy the suit.  You can repeal the Title 5 exemption and take care of the sanctions that are triggered solely by the existence of that exemption on California statutes.


The next issue really is:  What do you want to do to get into attainment?  What do you want to do to clean the air?  For that, you need to essentially reduce emissions from all kinds of sources, including agriculture.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


Now, I’d like to talk about a provision in SB 700, Section 6, which would require mitigation from confined animal facilities.  Many of us know those as dairies.  And that seems to be the crux of a lot of disagreement in this bill.  I guess from the perspective of just implementation, do you look at Section 6 as something that is somewhat clear and workable, or is there still some vague aspects to this, from your perspective?


MR. OGLESBY:  Well, the air districts have to actually implement it, so I defer to them for whether that section is workable.  We are asked in the bill, however, to define what a CAFO, what a large animal facility is, and that would be something that we would undertake.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


The last question I have simply has to do with in terms of your participation.  I think you’ve been at almost every one of our hearings as we’ve traveled through the Central Valley, and I want to make sure it’s for the record.  The Air Resources Board has worked with this committee and have been involved in the negotiations on SB 700.


MR. OGLESBY:  Yes.  Let me say for the record, we don’t have a position on the bill.  Also for the record, we provided technical advice and participated in the roundtable meetings you’ve had and at your hearings up and down the valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And have you found our office, particularly in terms of the chairmanship of this committee, somewhat accessible?


MR. OGLESBY:  You’ve been very accessible.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Oglesby.  We appreciate that.


Larry Greene, legislative chairman, California Air Pollution Control Officers.  We want to make sure we also have Barbara Lee as well who’s been negotiating with us.


Let’s start, either of you, in terms of your work on SB 700.  Can you tell us, in essence, what we’ve done to date, and from your perspective—the question I left with Rob—is that is it workable?  Is it clear?  Can you implement it?  I think that’s the real question.  


And if you have an opening statement—I’m sorry—you’re welcome to give that.


MR. LARRY GREENE:  And I’ll ask Barbara to answer most of the questions.  She wasn’t originally available, and she’s been able to free up her schedule.  She’s done most of the technical work for CAPCOA during the process, although many of us have participated with you and your office in that regard.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is it implementable, workable?  What has transpired, from your perspective, of where we started and where we ended up?  I know that we’ve done a lot of work in terms of getting to the question of whether or not you folks at this particular time, with this particular version, could actually implement this bill, because it’s been said it is “too large, too big, too broad, and unimplementable.”  And I guess the question would be:  Is that the case, since you’re the folks that have to do it?


MS. BARBARA LEE:  In terms of your question about our work on this bill, we have had several objectives going into this effort with you.  The first, obviously, is to deal with the deficiency that EPA found in our permitting programs to clean up those programs and ensure we have the authority to implement the federal Clean Air Act and avert the sanctions that are otherwise going to come into place.  And that’s been our first goal.


Our second goal has been to work with you as you have endeavored to make positive changes to affect air quality in the San Joaquin Valley, to make sure that the changes that you’re bringing forward are practical and implementable for all of the districts that they would take effect in.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of your perspective of the “Poochigian letter”—I’m going to refer to it, as I told Rob—the difference between the current versions of 700 and what the original language as offered by the EPA does, can you tell us what you believe the difference is between those two pieces?  That seems to be the argument:  that we’re going much further than what EPA is telling us to do.  Just your perspective.


MS. LEE:  Certainly.


In regard to the permit exemption, the “Poochigian letter” would only remove the permit exemption for those agricultural sources that require permits under federal law.  And the districts are held to using federal processes for determining whether those requirements apply.


Under state law and for all other industrial sources, the local districts have the authority to issue permits to whatever sources are necessary to issue permits to in order to accomplish their mission for cleaning up the air.  And which sources get permits varies from district to district based on the attainment status of the district.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of—from your opinion—what version would probably take us further in terms of cleaning the air?  The Poochigian version or SB 700?


MS. LEE:  The version of the language that was encapsulated in the “Poochigian letter” only deals with permitting.  SB 700, in its current form, has objectives and deadlines to meet in order to implement measures to clean up the air.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In essence, then, SB 700 goes beyond what the EPA is requiring as the minimum, because we actually have some timetables and some types of definitions and other things that would allow you to implement it.  Is that a better way to put it?


MS. LEE:  In regards to permitting, certainly it goes beyond what EPA requires, especially in the San Joaquin Valley and in the South Coast.  They have an enormous battle to meet attainment requirements, and they are required by EPA to do that.  So, it isn’t, strictly speaking, going beyond.  It’s merely giving specificity in those cases.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


Have you had an opportunity to read the proposed language by the agricultural community?  The amendments?


MS. LEE:  I am not very familiar with it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


It’s my understanding that Assemblymember Yee (slash) Farm Bureau takes out “confined animal facilities” completely—such as dairies—and I guess my question would be, from an air quality perspective, how would that affect air pollution if we were to do that—or air quality in general?  Your thoughts.


MS. LEE:  In areas where confined animal facilities are a significant contributor to local air quality problems?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mm hmm.


MS. LEE:  Removing the requirement to regulate them would slow down the process of cleaning up the air.  In areas where confined animal facilities are not a significant problem, there is not likely to be an appreciable difference.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


I think what we were attempting to do, one might read from the lawsuit, is to end an exemption for agriculture.  And I guess what I hear in the amendments—and I know that the Farm Bureau probably will come up and tell us exactly what they are in a moment—but I think, to me, and just your thoughts on this, we’re trying to end an exemption, and it appears to me they’re trying to end an exemption, yet create another exemption.  So, in other words, farms—okay; dairies—not.  Therefore, the agricultural community as we know it—the Central Valley dairies and farms—we would capture farms, but we would, in essence, by taking out caged animal facilities and others, be exempting another category.


Is that a good way to read that?  How would you put it?  This is an exemption to an exemption bill, I guess.  I mean, we’re ending an exemption and we’re creating an exemption.


MS. LEE:  I’m a little cautious about making comments on this other set of amendments because I’m not very familiar with them.  I would say that my understanding of the general thrust of the amendments is to make a narrow change in the exemption for agriculture as opposed to a broad change in the exemption for agriculture.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the question I asked Rob Oglesby a minute ago, in terms of Section 6 that relates to confined animal facilities, does that seem a workable and clear and implementable section to you?


MS. LEE:  With the understanding that we are referring to that section with the two or three amendments that we agreed on with you, that were going to be incorporated in the hearing last week, I would say that with those amendments, yes, it is clear and workable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the air districts in California being able to control agricultural sources, is that the case today?  I mean, are we able to do that in any significant way?


MS. LEE:  Local air pollution control districts are barred in state law from issuing permits to those sources.  They are not barred from establishing regulations for those sources.  Permits, however, are an important vehicle for the districts, for the enforceability of requirements, and not being able to issue permits can, especially with larger, complicated operations, be a pretty significant impediment to enforcing those requirements.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, to get specific, we can do fugitive dust, Reg. 8, something of that sort, incentive programs, Carl Moyer, but in terms of ag permitting or monitoring, we’re pretty much barred from doing that.  Is that correct?


MS. LEE:  We are barred from issuing permits, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does any farm in California. . . . or in the Central Valley—let’s just keep it there—know how much pollution it’s generating right now?  Can you go up to any farm and say, “How much am I generating?”


MS. LEE:  I would be very surprised if they would be able to answer that question, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so, if they didn’t know how much they were emitting, then it would be very difficult to know what we have to reduce?


MS. LEE:  Yes, although I do believe that the inventories have made estimates, both done by the San Joaquin Valley and also by the Air Resources Board.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you say that permits have helped to reduce air pollution from other sources other than ag?  Let’s use the oil industry in Kern County, for example.  I do know that we were up at some point in time.  I think we have a statistic that says in 1990 petroleum was 17 percent of smog-forming emissions.  In 2000 it was 8 percent.


What do you attribute to that type of reduction?


MS. LEE:  Generally speaking, it is requirements that specifically are aimed at reducing air pollution that lead to the reductions.  As I said, the permits are an important vehicle for enforcing those requirements and strong enforcement provisions and permits generally yield better emission reductions on the ground.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And would we say then, it would be logical to assume that those same types of mechanisms would work in agriculture?


MS. LEE:  We would anticipate that to be the case, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you believe we ought to go further than the minimum?


MS. LEE:  On behalf of CAPCOA, I have to say that the Association does not have a position other than local air pollution control districts should have the authority to do what they need to do to attain the standards they are required in law to attain.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And those local air districts, do they treat every industry equally then?


MS. LEE:  We approach the regulation of industries in the same way, and that is establishing, first, what their contribution is to the problem and then, secondly, looking for measures that will reduce that contribution that are cost effective and feasible from a technical and practical implementation standpoint.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  That’s all the questions I have.


Thank you very much.


MS. LEE:  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let’s hear from the ag industry, if we could:  Cynthia Cory, Farm Bureau; Louie Brown, California Cotton Ginners Association and representing other agricultural interests.


Let me make a statement, if I could.  Obviously, for those who only think the United Farm Workers boycott meetings, I guess the Farm Bureau has boycotted this meeting.  And I’m a little shocked and at a loss, given that this was a duly noticed hearing of an official committee.  This is the Senate Select Committee on Air Quality in the Central Valley.  This is the reason that we’re here today.  It is in Sacramento.  I believe most of the paid lobbyists do reside here, and so, I would hope that they would do their job and show up sometime before this hearing ends because I would very much appreciate hearing their amendments and particularly I would like to hear them in public.  They were very eager to hand those amendments to Mr. Yee, who wanted to talk about them behind closed doors.  But I think it’s important to note that these are extremely important matters that are pressing in front of the public, and we ought to have and discuss these amendments in full public view.  


As most of you know, those amendments were offered in the Appropriations Committee.  We normally don’t take policy amendments in Appropriations Committee.  Those are reserved for either other committees or on the entire Assembly Floor.  


So, we still have opportunities, Farm Bureau, if you’re listening and out there, to show up, because we would very much like to hear what you have to say, and there are ample opportunities for you to, in essence, amend these bills, if not in Appropriations, as we move forward.  


And so, I would like to say again for the record that we have conducted many meetings with local farmers and interests in agriculture.  I will tell you that we’ve never refused a meeting with anyone in terms of agriculture, in terms of explaining these bills.  And more importantly, all the amendments to this bill have come from meetings and representatives of agriculture.  We’ve amended this bill eight times.  This will be the ninth, I believe.  And so, everything that we’ve done in these bills thus far have included the concerns of agriculture, including the incentive language, in order to move out from underneath the bill.


Now, I guess my thought is, is that we have the opportunity to hear from them.  I do want to thank everyone who took the time to be here, but quite frankly, we do have a meeting.  We were planning to have this hearing this afternoon, work out the broad parameters, and have a language meeting tonight at 6 p.m.  I know that many people would like to have that a closed meeting, so let me just invite everyone here to the 6 p.m. meeting.  I guess we’ll continue the discussion in public because it’s absolutely important that we work out these amendments in public and that we have an opportunity so that we can actually debate and discuss these so that people have a clear understanding of what we need to do.


With that, let me say that we’ll move on to the environmental section of the bill.  I can tell you that grabbing your marbles and walking away from the table when you don’t get everything you want in negotiation is sometimes not the best way to proceed.  So, I would hope that farmers and others out there who pay many of these lobbyists to be here in these types of hearings and come testify would recognize that this boycott is. . . . I hope that people will take note.  I hope that Senator Burton will take note.  I hope that Speaker Wesson will take note.  There was ample opportunity to explain the position.  And as we move through the Appropriations Committee, I hope the chairman will take note that we had an opportunity here to debate and talk and to try to find a consensus on these bills, but that doesn’t seem to be happening as we speak.  So, maybe before the end of the hearing, the Farm Bureau and Cotton Ginners and others will somehow show up.


Let’s go on to our environmental groups:  Brent Newell, Center on Race, Poverty and the Environment, and Anne Harper from Earthjustice.  Thank you for working with us through this bill.  


I have questions.  We could probably proceed through those, and if you have a statement, we can take those as well.  Let me start with both of you and maybe you can answer them in dual fashion.  Or Brent, let me start with you.


The current version of SB 700—good, bad, indifferent?  Your thoughts on it.


MR. BRENT NEWELL:  I think it goes in the right direction.  If I were to have a choice, I would certainly favor one of the earlier versions that we had on the table that didn’t make quite so many workability concessions.  However, I think the provisions in SB 700 currently go a long way—a long way—towards making a significant impact on air quality.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think the current language in the bill goes far enough to control agricultural sources?


MR. NEWELL:  I think it could go further.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so, you don’t necessarily agree with everything in this bill.


MR. NEWELL:  To be perfectly honest, Senator, no.  I hope if you give me a rope, I want to be a cowboy.  I’d like to see more in the bill.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But even though you disagree, you showed up in order to tell us. . . . tell us how much further you’d want us to go on this bill, if we could.  I mean, what didn’t we do that you would like us to do?


MR. NEWELL:  I’d like to see some provision in the bill that addresses the contingency of what happens when the federal EPA switches to the PM 2.5 and the eight-hour ozone standard.  I think we want to make sure that we have the right level of control measures imposed should those new air quality standards apply.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the dairy emissions, the ag folks are saying caged animal facilities should be out of this bill, that we’re going much further than the Poochigian language.  I mean, your thoughts on that whole debate.


MR. NEWELL:  I think the concentrated animal feeding operations should definitely be included in the bill.  They’re responsible for a significant amount of directly emitted particulate matter, particulate matter precursors, and ozone precursors.  
In terms of caged layers—in terms of the poultry industry—they generate huge amounts of particulate matter.  So, I think there’s really no reason why the bill should exclude those sources.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And why is particulate matter so important as this being a part of this bill?  I mean, why don’t we just settle the lawsuit, do the large stationary sources, and be done with it?  I mean, why do we need to go further to capture those particular emissions, as you’ve mentioned?


MR. NEWELL:  Particulate matter, especially the fine fraction—what’s called PM 2.5—creates a huge health threat.  It actually causes premature death.  In the eight counties of the Air Basin, approximately 1,300 people a year die from current levels of PM 2.5.  If you add that to the death toll from PM 10, just in the two years since the terrorist attacks on September 11th, we’ve lost more citizens in the San Joaquin Valley than from those attacks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the issue of conservation management as compared to control measures, what’s your thought?  What’s the difference in those?


MR. NEWELL:  I think the Conservation Management Practices Program is just another label for “no regulation.”  Those plans are kept secret at the U.S. Department of Agriculture.  There is no actual requirement to meet those plans.  They just need to create them.  The public has no access, and frankly, they’re unenforceable.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the proposal offered by agriculture—the amendments—have you had a chance to look at those at all?


MR. NEWELL:  I got to look at them on the day of the hearing last Wednesday.  And my colleague, Anne, has had a chance to look at them as well, so I’d like to hear her thoughts.


But basically what those provisions do is take us to the status quo.  They do the absolute minimum that the “Poochigian letter” says, and then they strike out everything else.  It’s an empty bill.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the issue of protecting the health needs of the residents in the Central Valley, you’ve got two proposals; obviously, one by agriculture and presented by Mr. Yee, and then you have the other, as in SB 700.  Same questions I’ve asked the air boards:  your thoughts in terms of furthering the issues in terms of air quality—do they go further than “Poochigian”?  Do they clean the air?  I mean, just your overall view on that.


MR. NEWELL:  There’s no question, Senator, that SB 700 goes much further.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Brent.


Anne, thank you for joining us.


Identical questions:  Your opinion of the current version of SB 700?  Your thoughts?


MS. ANNE HARPER:  Like Brent, I would like to see a much stronger version in place.  There’s no question that agriculture is a major source of air pollution in the Central Valley.  It’s been completely unregulated.  I’d like to talk about the public health effects of that lack of regulation.  This bill does take good steps forward toward regulating those sources, but it could go much further.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From your perspective, has this bill moved forward or backwards in terms of the protections offered, in terms of health effects?  Just an honest assessment.


MS. HARPER:  You know, honestly, I think it’s gone backwards due to the concessions made to the agricultural industry.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of that, given the current language in the bill, would you say that it goes far enough to control agricultural sources?


MS. HARPER:  The current version of the bill takes strong steps toward regulating the concentrated animal feeding operations (CAFOs).  I don’t think it goes far enough toward regulating the diesel engine sources, which are major sources of nitrogen oxides in the Central Valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So, I guess the same question I asked Brent:  You don’t necessarily agree with everything in this bill.


MS. HARPER:  No.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you’ve been in support of this bill.


MS. HARPER:  Yes, absolutely.  Earthjustice represented the original groups—the Sierra Club, the National Resources Defense Council, and the Medical Advocates for Healthy Air—who brought the original litigation that resulted in EPA requiring California to remove this agricultural exemption.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


Let me ask a question, a threshold question.  I had hoped that both the Assemblymembers, Yee and Parra, were here.  And that is the negotiations that have taken place thus far.  You’ve been part of some of those negotiations.  Correct?


MS. HARPER:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  From your perspective, the agricultural industry, they were present?  Active?  I mean, what’s your thoughts in terms of their participation in negotiations so far?


MS. HARPER:  I think they’ve been following this bill extremely closely, all the way through the process.  I know that they’ve been in very close contact with many of the members in the various committees that have seen this bill.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in general then, have you had an opportunity to read, as of last print, their proposal?


MS. HARPER:  Yes, I have.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And your thoughts on it?


MS. HARPER:  They basically gut the best things that your bill does toward restricting the emissions from air pollution.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  If that version were to become law—of course, around this place there are never enough votes to get to a certain place—what would be the effects, from your perspective, on air quality in the Central Valley?  What would we expect to see?


MS. HARPER:  Frankly, I don’t think you’d see much improvement.  It does the absolute bare minimum, and in an area that has consistently been ranked the most polluted area in the country, the smoggiest air in the country, I don’t think that goes nearly far enough.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  To play devil’s advocate, you had a lawsuit that asked ag to lift an exemption, and I guess the question would be:  Why not allow us just to do the minimum to meet the lawsuit?  I mean, that’s all we have to do.  Isn’t that what you were doing with your lawsuit?  Is that what you expected them to do, just the stationary pumps and large agricultural sources?  


What is selling the lawsuit?  That seems to be the crux of this. 


MS. HARPER:  Right.  When we brought this lawsuit we looked at air quality in the Central Valley.  We saw how miserable it was.  We looked at the public health effects and saw what those were, and then we looked at the air district’s own data on what the major sources of pollution in the Central Valley were.  Ag kept appearing at the top of the list as one of the worst offenders in terms of producing air pollution in the Central Valley, so we sought to enforce the Clean Air Act which requires only that major sources of air pollution be regulated.  The agricultural industry—there’s no question that it’s a major source of air pollution in the Central Valley.  And so, we sought to have that, as a major source, regulated.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess their argument would be that “major source” would mean only those farms with major sources who are themselves major sources versus the industry as a whole being a major source. 


Your thought process on that?  Were you looking at agricultural farms with large major sources on them, or are you saying that the agricultural community in general was a major source?  I guess that’s my question.


MS. HARPER:  Well, the way these sources are regulated is on an individual basis under the Clean Air Act.  The Title 5 permits are issued by the air districts to individual sources, so we sought to get the largest of these sources regulated.  We realize that this is an incremental process; that even getting the largest sources in the agricultural industry regulated, just as other major sources are regulated in every other industry, was going to be a huge undertaking because there is a lot of political will on the other side to retain this illegal exemption.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s go to the dairy issue.  The thought process in the amendments offered by the agricultural community (slash) Mr. Yee say that dairies ought to be exempt from this bill.  What’s the argument on the other side?  Why should dairies be part of this bill?  Why is that important?


MS. HARPER:  Even according to the California Air Resource Board’s own numbers, confined animal feeding operations are major sources of air pollution.  They produce volatile organic compounds that combine with nitrogen oxides that are put off by the irrigation pump engines to form smog.  I mean, those are the two major sources, are CAFOs and the irrigation pump engines.  


The trend in the dairy industry has been toward concentrating more and more animals on smaller areas of land.  When this agricultural exemption was put into place in 1976, the average dairy size in California had 135 cows.  Well, now there are 127 permit applications pending in the Central Valley for herd sizes, on an average, of over 5,900 cows.  So, clearly, the trend in the industry has been to put more and more animals on smaller areas of land, and the emissions from those sources increase exponentially when you do that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the issues, in terms of conservation management as compared to control measures, your thought process on that?


MS. HARPER:  I agree with Brent.  It’s an unenforceable, unworkable plan that won’t help reduce the emissions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have any closing things you would like to tell the committee?


MS. HARPER:  Well, you did comment on the public health conditions in the Central Valley, so I don’t need to go too much into that—the fact that one in six children in Fresno have asthma.  But I just want to make clear that when we started looking at this problem three years ago in the Central Valley and looking at the major sources of air pollution and the data that the air districts presented, we were really looking at trying to get regulated two major sources:  the irrigation pump engines, which I don’t think most people realize how dirty these engines are.  They are based on 1940s technology.  Even one engine of over 300 horsepower can be considered a major source of air pollution under the Clean Air Act.  These irrigation engines produce nitrogen oxides, and just to make sure everyone’s clear, nitrogen oxides combine with the volatile organic compounds from CAFOs to form smog, to form ground-level ozone.  That is why the Central Valley is one of the smoggiest areas in the country, because of the emissions from these two sources.


So, we’re talking about regulating the largest polluters in the industry, not the entire industry, and this bill takes, sort of. . . . I mean, forgive me, but baby steps toward doing that.  So, doing the bare minimum in an area that has the dirtiest air in the country is absolutely not enough.  I mean, even doing what your bill does will slowly move the area toward getting cleaner air.  We’ll take that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


Well, let me ask both of you then, if I could—Earthjustice and Center on Race, Poverty and the Environment, pretty active groups, and obviously you’ve been involved in quite a few fights in the Central Valley.  I guess my question would be:  Have you ever not appeared at a meeting because you didn’t agree with something?  I mean, have you, in essence, just boycotted a meeting where you had an opportunity to voice your concerns, particularly on bills that affect the environment and air quality?  I mean, most folks don’t obviously see the Farm Bureau and others as boycotting and radical, but I guess, you know, I would probably ask you guys your perspectives on that.


MS. HARPER:  Well, we don’t have a lot of money for marketing.  We don’t have a lot of opportunity to get our message out there, so we’ll take every chance we get to get our message out there.


MR. NEWELL:  Well, I lived in Bakersfield for my first two years of work in the valley, and I attended quite a few board of supervisor meetings and air district meetings, and I never chickened out.  And I was the only guy there from the environmental side.  So, I would appreciate their presence.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I would too.


Thank you, both, very much for being here.


We have opportunity now for public comment, and you’re welcome to come on up and introduce yourselves, and we’d like to hear from you.


Okay.  Just jump on in, and we’re ready to listen.


MR. KEVIN HAMILTON:  I’m Kevin Hamilton with Medical Advocates for Healthy Air and director of the asthma program at Community Medical Center.  I’m here today on behalf of SB 700 and the changes it seeks to make.  And I hope to present some information as to why that would be so and why the alternatives are extremely grim.


If all we change is one of our precursors for pollution or one of our types of sources of pollution in the valley, we’re still left with a whole inventory of pollutants that are not regulated or not changed.  If we do the minimum, as required by the lawsuit, and all we’re going to regulate is NOx emissions from these pumps, and we’re not going to admit ammonia from dairies. . . . I’ve spent the last fifteen years of my life teaching patients to avoid ammonia exposure because it triggers their disease.  Now, if the ammonia exposure is becoming so concentrated into the air they breathe when they step out the door, then I can teach them all I want to about avoiding ammoniated cleansers and cleaners in their homes, but how can I teach them to avoid breathing outside their homes?  I can’t do that.  I need the help of government to do that.  And that’s what we’re looking to this bill for and to you for, and I’m actually looking to agriculture to do that because they have to breathe the same air.  The problem is getting worse and worse and worse, and it’s not showing any signs of being relieved.


Your bill is actually moderate in nature at this point in time.  The initial language of the bill was much more to my liking, as you well know.  How people can draw lines in the sand between the economy and public health is very difficult for me as a healthcare provider.  I can’t draw that line.  I don’t know where we say this amount of economic impact is mitigated by this much collateral damage to people’s lives in our area—or death.  Where do we draw that line?  How do we draw that line?


I had somebody from the board of supervisors from Fresno County who disappointed me greatly—who’s a nurse—who made statements of that type at a meeting that you were at the other day.  And we appreciated you coming down there.  I was very distressed to hear that individual, who has a huge background in healthcare, actually say we need to balance these two things out, when I would expect that person to be a huge champion, actually, on the other side of this thing and be more firm.  If I’m going to draw a line in the sand anywhere, it’s going to be in front of your lungs, your heart, and your body systems.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Thank you, Kevin.


MR. KEVIN HALL:  Senator Florez, thank you for this hearing.  Senator Torlakson, nice to see you here.  Appreciate your interest in supporting valley residents.  It’s been lacking from other members of elected office.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s in the Assembly.


MR. HALL:  Yes, sir.  I don’t want to go down that road.


I really did want to bring you both. . . . I have a couple of comments, and that is, I was at the air district board meeting this past Thursday.  They passed a rule on permitted ag sources, which are the off-field food processors.  They were supposed to, but they hesitated, they balked, in spite of the fact that the valley’s under the threat of sanctions for this rule.  Instead, they’ve put it off for another month, and the reason for that is the ag food processors stood up and said, We want a higher emission level limit.  They want, in this case, a 30 part per million on a certain type of boiler.  The district was proposing 15 parts per million.  The standard in South Coast is 9.  


So, this is how ag works in the valley on its permitted sources.  They want an emission limit of three-and-a-half times what South Coast residents are now afforded to protect public health there.  And again, that’s the permitted sources.


I went through the inventories last night—you know, kitchen table activism being what it is—and got out the pencil and paper, and looking at the latest figures available, the State of California, at the request of agriculture, has spent more than $30 million on researching sources of air pollution.  And the sources from agriculture are climbing.  When we look at where we are in baseline 1999 and where we will be in the year 2010, ag sources, on-field ag sources of all criteria pollutants, will have increased by 11 percent.  They will climb from 603 tons per day to 672.  Meanwhile, all other sources are decreasing.  And the criteria pollutants that I’m speaking about are the VOCs, the NOx, the SOx, the particulate matter directly emitted, and ammonia.  This is not the trend that will get us to clean air.  It will continue this path of destruction that we’re on.


I also would like to point out to you, please, that ag is simply the ball and chain in the San Joaquin Valley in every possible way:  on achieving clean air, on achieving economic growth, at addressing this terrible environmental injustice that is occurring, and, finally, on the political process.  And I think we’re witnessing all of those things on a daily basis now.


You asked about the ideal bill.  If I had the ideal bill for agriculture, I would look at a farm like a business, and I would say, What activities occur in every form to create pollution?  That would look at all the dust that is raised in cultural practice.  It would look at pesticide application.  It would look at emissions from mobile and nonmobile sources that are being used on the farm.  It would look at ammonia emissions from these waste lagoons.  We have a cow population in the San Joaquin Valley that is the equivalent of 50 million human beings in terms of waste, and that waste is being treated in open-air lagoons.  That is the largest and fastest growing source of unregulated pollution right now in the valley.  Three hundred and fifty tons per day of ammonia, climbing to 450 tons per day by the end of the decade.  How can we get there with that?  


A quick point on the lawsuit:  I was instrumental in helping forge that action.  We focused on irrigation pumps because it was the only place we could get any data because there’s no measuring and monitoring going on.  There was no solid data on which to base a successful lawsuit.  If you don’t measure and you don’t monitor, how can you verify your claims?  Well, that was one area.  And how did we have it?  The state has spent more than $20 million subsidizing the replacement of old diesel pumps with new diesel pumps in agriculture.  The state has spent more than $50 million on valley agriculture in the last decade, and this is the thanks we’re getting here in Sacramento, and I think it’s time to change that.


One small point, and I’ll stop there, please.  Two points.  We want to get into these closed meetings.  We would never deny the opportunity or miss the opportunity for an open meeting.  


I’m on the Fresno County Planning Commission.  If you want to open a mega-dairy in Fresno County, you don’t need to get a conditional use permit.  There is no environmental review.  It is a “by right” land use.  You just go and get your water discharge permit from the state and your building permit from the county.  That’s all you do.  We had a dairy in Southern Fresno County go up from 5,000 to 10,000 head this year.  There was no requirement to try and estimate what air pollution impacts that dairy would have.


Please, in closing, do not compromise any further on this bill.  This is a very incremental step.  It’s in the right direction.  I support you completely.  You have my undying respect and gratitude for your efforts.  Agriculture gets to walk away from this, at this point, a winner either way.  They get to go home and say, Look what we got for you.  And it’s the truth.  Because now we have to go with these tools you give us and fight it out at the air district, and that’s an ugly battle, believe me.  But we appreciate it.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Kevin.


MS. LARA FLYNN:  Lara Flynn on behalf of the California Nurses Association, representing 50,000 registered nurses, many of which are public health nurses.  I’ll keep my comments very brief.


We just want to reiterate our support for SB 700 in the strongest possible terms.  You’ve heard from other healthcare groups, and I think the environmental community also stated that the public health costs are just too high.  We believe that valley residents deserve to breathe clean air along with the rest of the state.


Thanks.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. TIM CARMICHAEL:  Good afternoon, Senator Florez.  Tim Carmichael with the Coalition for Clean Air.  And thank you for being here, Senator Torlakson.


Just a couple of comments feeding off of what’s already been covered.  I wanted to highlight a couple of things that I don’t think were mentioned, just to put in perspective ag’s contribution to pollution in the valley.  I’m not sure the numbers were related, but they should be on the record.  Over 25 percent of smog-forming emissions and over 50 percent of particulate emissions in the San Joaquin Valley are coming from agricultural sources.  


I think it’s important to note that simply removing the exemption, as is advocated by some representatives of the ag industry, simply removing the exemption that’s in place today does not do anything to reduce air pollution in the San Joaquin Valley.  Obviously, what would need to take place is a second step that someone would have to implement a program to reduce emissions from specific sources, and I think that’s one of the great strengths of the bill that’s before us is the fact that you specify what should be done, or at least some of the things that should be done, in the near term.  I think that’s important for a couple of reasons.  One, it gives direction to the state agency as well as to the air districts, but it also gives clarity to the industry.  If there’s one thing that I’ve heard again and again in the South Coast and here in Sacramento from industry groups it’s We want to know what you want from us over the next five years.  


Your bill lays out what’s coming for the next five years.  As was said by my colleagues earlier, does it do everything that we think should be done?  No.  But is it clear on what is going to be done if this bill is passed?  Yes.  And I think that’s a fundamental strength that isn’t always part of bills coming out of the Legislature or regulations coming out of the agencies:  the clarity on what’s coming for a period of time.


Two other things I want to clarify that I think are really important for people to be aware of:  The sanctions.  If we don’t act as a state and sanctions go forward, they are not limited to the agricultural industry.  If we’re talking about the transportation sanction and the highway dollars, that affects everybody in the State of California—everybody that uses the road either for their personal use or to get goods to their home.  If we’re talking about the offset sanction, that is going to affect every industry in the valley at a minimum; not just the agricultural industry but all the industries.


The final thing I wanted to note is the fairness issue.  Regularly in the South Coast we hear from the oil industry or other industries that come forward and say, You know what?  We’re doing our part.  It’s only fair that other major sources do their part to reduce emissions.  Right now the ag industry in the San Joaquin Valley has a free pass, and that is simply not fair to every other industry, every other source, that is starting to do their part to reduce pollution, if we allow that to continue in the future.


And I just want to thank you for your leadership on this effort.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Tim.


MR. DAN KALB:  Hi. Dan Kalb representing Union of Concerned Scientists.


Thank you, Senator Florez, for holding this hearing and for working so hard all year on these issues, and thank you, Senator Torlakson, for being part of this today.


There’s no reason for me to repeat all the many things that were just said now or a few moments ago.  I do want to point out, as you mentioned, that it’s not only asthma that’s a big problem in the Central Valley and throughout the state, but air pollution has been shown to be a significant contributing factor to various types of cancer as well as heart disease.  It’s a major public health problem.  I think everybody in this room is aware that this is a public health problem and that it goes beyond just asthma.  Although, the problems with asthma alone are certainly valid reasons to address this issue.


I will point out—and I think someone else mentioned this directly or indirectly—data collection is an important part—in fact, a fundamental part—of having science-based solutions to addressing public health problems or any problem that deals with science.  And permitting is an essential part of data collection.  So, if someone was to offer an amendment that would make it more difficult to collect data, they are going against the idea of having science-based solutions, not in favor of it.  And so, please don’t let anybody who wants to weaken this bill suggest that they are doing so in the name of science.  They are not.


I will also point out that in an effort—and this goes for any bill, of course—in an effort to seek consensus, as we all try to do—and I appreciate your effort to amend the bill over the past several months, even though some of those amendments appear to, in our eyes here, make it a little bit weaker—you have made an attempt to seek consensus, and we appreciate that.  But the overall goal is to address and reduce air pollution in the Central Valley and throughout most of the state, and we ask you to keep sight of that goal and not to weaken it too much.


I don’t need to go into all the other issues that were already mentioned, so I’ll just say thanks again, and we hope that this bill passes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MR. TIM McRAE:  Tim McRae with the Planning and Conservation League.


Thank you, Senator Florez, for holding this hearing.  Thank you, Senator Torlakson, for appearing and supporting this bill.  We particularly appreciate your leadership as being a representative from the Central Valley, saying, you know, it’s now time—we really need to end this exemption and go further than just what the lawsuit has to say.


I don’t need to offer a lot more comment.  This is sort of the political equivalent of “piling on.”  But I really think that it is important to pile on, to demonstrate, the support that this bill has.  Our thousands of members are in strong support of this bill.  Planning and Conservation League has supported this bill from the start.  We understand that you’ve had to take some amendments.  We feel that those amendments have slightly weakened the bill, but we still feel like this is an incredibly important step for California for take, and we hope that it does not get compromised by what has been offered by Assemblyman Yee and the Farm Bureau.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.


MS. ALICIA BOHLKE:  Senators, thank you very much for your leadership in this area, and Senator Florez especially.  We’ve been kind of traveling around the state following you a little bit in secret.


My name is Alicia Bohlke.  I’m the program manager for the Merced/Marisposa County Asthma Coalition.  We are part of the CAFA organization, which stands for Community Action to Fight Asthma.  We represent in state office four regional centers and twelve asthma coalitions throughout the State of California.  So, we represent a lot of constituents that are concerned about our air quality, as everyone else is at this point.  


We are here today to publicly show support for—our full support—for Senate Bill 700.  We also want to let you know that our CAFA organization is a rather unique format, because we are not totally clinically based.  We have an environmental mandate to make a difference for school-age children involving asthma and, in particular, low-income school-age children.  So, in our various areas that’s what we work with on a daily basis.


But I will tell you that my job is not my only reason I’m here today.  I have a very personal reason why I’m here.  I moved from Florida to California in January.  I have a six-year-old asthmatic son.  I have been here only eight months, and I cannot tell you how many times I have had to deal with his asthma, which was fine for almost three years.  As soon as we got here, within one month we were in the ER.  We now have spent over $600 on his asthmatic medications, getting the nebulizer back, getting everything in place for him so that he can go to school.  We deal with inhaler policies at school.  We deal with school nurses.  


This is ridiculous.  It will kill the Central Valley.  Young families like mine will have to move.  We simply cannot allow our six-year-old to stay in that environment any longer, and we’ve only just gotten there.


So, we want you to know that we support this bill.  Please don’t make anymore concessions, and we hope that in the near future, maybe the Central Valley will be a great place for us to live someday.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


MR. WILLIAM BRIEGER:  Good afternoon, Senators. Will Brieger from the Attorney General’s Office.  I want to thank you both personally and on behalf of the Attorney General for carrying SB 700, for exploring this issue so thoroughly in a series of the Select Committee hearings.  


This state faces a lot of problems.  A lot has been discussed.  I just want to add one thing that really hasn’t had much attention this afternoon, and that is a little bit of detail about the sanctions that we face.


Under the Clean Air Act, the federal EPA has two tools, and when a state runs afoul of one of the provisions and gets sanctioned, it’s the same two sanctions every time.  There’s a two-to-one offset which impacts businesses.  Essentially you’d need to close two equivalent facilities in order to open one new one in a two-to-one scenario.  The second sanction, of course, is 2.4 billion in transportation money that comes to the state and can be withheld—must be withheld—as part of the sanction.


The goal of SB 700, as we’ve heard, is more than simply avoiding the sanction that’s supposed to begin in November of this year, and the second half of it comes six months later.  But I haven’t heard discussion of a second sanction that the state is facing.  Again, the same tools but the San Joaquin Valley is facing sanctions for not attaining particulate matter standards; in fact, for not even having a plan to deal with particulate matter.  SB 700 addresses that.  Rather than a plan that devolves in this slow and meticulous fashion of many clean air laws, it actually scripts a little bit what needs to be done at the local level.  And for that, it’s looking a little into the future so that we’re not simply dodging the first sanction bullet, but we’re facing a second one soon after.  That one actually begins in March of 2004.  


And finally, there are the so-called national ambient air quality standards at every level, whether it’s particulate matter, ozone, and other air pollutants.  Any failure to meet those standards by the designated year again puts either that district or the state at risk for those sanctions.  


So, do we want to be here every year dodging that year’s sanction?  I don’t think so.  I think we want to go as far as possible.  


I obviously respect your wisdom in making concessions to get the bill through, but since I can’t be here at six o’clock tonight, I just want to emphasize, under no way, shape, or form is it good policy to dodge the November sanction and call that victory.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good point.  Thank you very much.  


I do want to say that there are many clocks and many sanctions in place, and I think one of the things I hear about this bill more often than not around the halls in the last couple of days is we can avoid the transportation sanction if we just do the minimum.  I think they forget about the PM 10 sanction.  They forget about the ozone sanction and the fact that those are just right around the corner, and that we need a comprehensive piece of legislation that actually captures them all at once.  [Recording tape changed – portion of text missing.]


. . . businesses more than anything is that you get us down one road and then the year later you change us again, and then a year later you change us again.  I think what we’re trying to do is do it right one time.  One long fishing expedition.  One trip and back, not ten trips, if you will, to get it right.  And I think that’s the reason it’s somewhat more comprehensive.  


And I do want to thank you for talking about the other sanction clocks, because as much as we tell the folks in the Central Valley that we’re not trying to avoid just one—the transportation this year—that there are others coming; that PM 10 and ozone are really what we’re after.  I think that’s very well noted.


Thank you very much.


DR. BARRY WALLERSTEIN:  Good afternoon.  My name is Dr. Barry Wallerstein.  I’m the executive officer at the South Coast Air Quality Management District in the Metropolitan Los Angeles area, home to roughly 16 million Californians.  And I appreciate this opportunity to address the committee.


My governing board has adopted a support position on SB 700.  We see 700 as critical to ending the federal sanction clock.  As you’ve heard from other witnesses, the offset ratio is scheduled to go to 2 to 1, as opposed to our current 1.2 to 1, towards the end of this November, absent a vehicle such as 700.


I would like to note that for sources such as new power plants, which this state has a great need for, that increase in the offset ratio could be a deterring factor to new power plants.  It will literally mean millions of dollars of extra offsets will be required, and it’s critical that we address the sanction clock.


I also wanted to note that relative to the other key sections of the bill, we at South Coast are already implementing programs that match the spirit of those sections, and let me be specific.  Relative to the bill section for BACM and BARCT regulations, we already have a Fugitive Dust Rule 403 that applies to agriculture.  We have a Regulation 1186 that is for primary PM 10 emissions from paved and unpaved roads and livestock operations, obviously applying to agriculture.  We have a Draft Rule 1127, which is emission reductions from livestock waste directed at dairy operations, scheduled to be considered by our board in January.  Three weeks ago we revised our ozone and particulate plans.  We incorporated measures in those plans which will lead to future rules in the next couple of years to extend that Draft Rule 1127 to poultry operations and other agricultural operations, and also, what we call BACM ’07 to update our BACM measures.


The other major portion of the bill, from my perspective, is Section 6, which is the emissions mitigation plan implemented through a permit, and I’d like to note that in the South Coast Air Basin, we have implemented, I think, some analogous programs to what would be asked of agriculture in this case.  We have a Rule 2009 for power plants that requires compliance plans to meet BARCT and to be updated periodically.  We have a Rule 1132 for large spray painting operations that requires an emissions minimization plan.  And we have yet another measure contained in our recently adopted Air Quality Management Plan for other large volatile organic compound sources. 


So, what’s being asked in this bill is really not different than what’s being asked of other major pollution sources.  And as we like to say in the air pollution game, it is a zero sum game.  If one source doesn’t do its fair share, others will be asked to do that source’s duty of cleaning up air pollution.  We simply think that is unfair.


The last comment I’d like to make is regarding the industry’s proposed minimal bill.  I would like to make sure that the committee is aware that while they are proposing that here in Sacramento, they are working in Washington, D.C. to have stationary source engines reclassified as mobile source engines to take them outside of the control of the local districts.  We, of course, are objecting to that with the Administration in D.C.  Ultimately, if the Administration moves forward and approves such a change, I will be recommending to my governing board that we litigate the matter.


And I thank you for holding this hearing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.


Any others for public comment?  


Seeing and hearing none, Senator Torlakson, do you have some thoughts?  You walked in, actually, just about the right time.


SENATOR TOM TORLAKSON:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  I was watching on TV and have been tracking the bill and wanted to say I commend you for your leadership efforts here and the public for being so engaged.  I wish, as you had also called for, everyone to work together; that the agricultural representatives had been here today to give their up-to-date input.  


I think this is vitally important.  The consequences, as have been testified here today by so many witnesses across the board—very precise health impacts in the communities you represent but huge implications for the whole state.  So, it’s very important.  


We know that agriculture, like many industries, is under a lot of different stresses, and certainly we’re all aware of that and looking for how you transition into doing the right thing in a bill like you have here and also trying to find ways to help agriculture get there.  I think there are different ways the state can continue to help.  And the data collection’s important, that was testified here today, so you know actually what harm and what impacts are occurring with certain types of emissions.  


So, all of that I support and, again, look forward to continuing to work with you as you move Senate Bill 700 forward to get the kind of consensus that’s needed and get the progressive programs in place.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator, and thank you for showing up.  I appreciate it.


I also want to thank Senator Romero’s staff—Alan Gordon and others—for being here.


I would like to say in closing this that I guess we’ll just continue the meeting at six o’clock because the point of the hearing today was to give particularly those with amendments in their hands the opportunity to explain those amendments in detail and to make sure that the people—the air boards particularly, the implementers—had the opportunity to be in the room, and I hope you will participate tonight at 6 p.m. in Room 112.  I know many in the ag industry consider that a closed meeting, but considering their boycott of this meeting, I’ve just opened that meeting up for everyone that would like to come and participate, because, quite frankly, these discussions have to be out in the open.


I can tell you that I’m a little dismayed.  Anytime the word “dirt” is mentioned, or “dust,” I know the ag lobbyists are in any hearing.  Whether it be Environmental Quality, whether it be Housing, you name it, they’re there, and it amazes me that on a specific bill with such high stakes such as SB 700, the fact that they would not show up means that I will continue to go back to my farmers in the Central Valley and ask them where their money is going.  When people are paid to show up to meetings and to lobby and to come and to be advocates for the industry, the fact that they wouldn’t take the time to even sit in the back row concerns me quite a bit.  


And I think for many of those lobbyists who are listening, it also concerns me that you have so much trouble that I go to my farmers directly.  I sat last Friday with 50 to 60 almond growers, talking about SB 700, getting their concerns, arguing and making the case to real practitioners who have to live with the effects of this bill, and I’ll continue to go to them, particularly if you won’t show up to come to hearings to give the industry’s side of it.  I think the practitioners are just as important as the lobbyists in Sacramento who are paid to be here.  And so, I’ll continue to keep talking to farmers.  I do appreciate those fifty-plus almond farmers who took the time—two-and-a-half hours—to argue how “bad” these bills were.  I think they walked out knowing that these bills aren’t as bad as the lobbyists made them out to be.  


More importantly, I think that they showed a sign of cooperation.  It isn’t easy showing up to places that some folks may not agree with you.  I know I didn’t feel as comfortable as I normally do with these very, very tough bills, walking into a Basque restaurant and arguing these bills.  


I think it just shows a lack of courage, quite frankly, for the members to point to amendments and not come to this hearing, even though they were invited, or have their staffs make those amendments and present them.  And I don’t think it shows very much courage from many of the lobbyists who are paid to come up and represent the interests.  I know that in Kern County those are somewhat fighting words.  But I’ll tell you, many in Kern County—my home county—would be disappointed that the folks didn’t come and make the case, particularly that they felt so strongly about it.  I just don’t get that at all.


So with that, you, again, are all invited tonight to a meeting that we will continue to have language discussions on this.  And we’ll adjourn this hearing.


Thank you.
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